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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

The George H. Bacon home is a white, temple-form house built in 1906 
and somewhat similar in style and proportion to the temple-form houses 
constructed repeatedly in the southern and eastern parts of the United 
States in the first half of the 19th Century. It is a two and a half 
story wood frame building, rectangular in plan, with three inch clap­ 
board siding. The ridge of its simple gable roof is on the longer 
axis and is perpendicular to the street. The front or east face is a 
pedimented portico supported by four free standing wooden box columns. 
The pediment is the gable end of the single main roof where it over­ 
hangs the front of the building forming the portico. Column capitals 
and bases are built up from mouldings, and there are panel recesses 
on all sides. False columns are placed at the four corners of the 
enclosed building. There are two more on the side walls near the 
back, where they might have occured had there been a similar portico 
at the rear of the house. These mark the beginning of an enclosed 
second floor sleeping porch added soon after the completion of the 
house. An entablature begins above the free-standing columns that 
continue around the building uninterrupted except for where one chimney 
projects a few inches roughly half way back on the south wall. A 
low railing runs between the columns around the portico perimeter with 
an opening centered before the front door. This railing height is of 
roughly the same dimension as the frieze above it, with a solid infill 
of clapboards matching the rest.

The main entrance is centered in front with two narrow sidelights and 
a crowning fanlight. Overhanging above the door is a second floor 
balcony with decorative 'balustrade that extends forward to the two 
central columns where its width fits in between and the columns pro­ 
vide support. Access to the balcony is through a Palladian doorway, 
(round headed with lower sidelights). Centered in the pediment is a 
semi-circular wheel window.

The remaining windows are a mixture of double hung, side pivoting and 
multipane types. Four are large and symmetrically distributed on either 
side of the front, one to a floor. On the south face, four windows 
are symmetrically arranged around the exposed chimney, with another 
toward the front at an interior stair landing. On the north they are 
randomly placed.

There are two chimneys, one exposed at the south wall and the other 
roughly centered in the roof slope on the opposite side. They ter­ 
minate at the top with different decorative masonary, although both 
have dentils to match the others in the pediment and the entablature 
below.

The house has always been white. Asphalt shingles have replaced the
original cedar roof, and a small porch enclosure has been added to
the kitchen near the back. The front of the house is unaltered.
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#7 - Description 
Bacon Home

From a small entrance hall, the large living room runs the length 
of the house with a fireplace at one side and a picture window at 
the rear overlooking Bellingham Bay. The fireplace was built with 
a front of soft green glazed ceramic tiles that have since been painted 
white. A staircase near the entrance leads to the second floor with a 
stairwell two stories high. At right angles to the living room is a 
dining room with a second fireplace. Except for painting there has 
been no change in this room. The fireplace (now white) was originally 
brown tile. At the rear of the dining room is a small powder room 
with modern plumbing. Parallel to the living room is the kitchen. 
Originally the kitchen was divided by a butler's pantry which no longer 
exists. A staircase goes from there to the basement, and another leads 
to the second floor. A long hall runs down the middle of the second 
floor, and off it are four bedrooms and a bathroom. The attic is 
one finished room. There is a full concrete basement, which was 
formerly a combined furnace room and laundry. It is now finished in 
knotty pine with furnace and laundry rooms smaller than original.

The grounds, on a bluff overlooking Bellingham Bay, were once twice 
as deep as they are now because considerable erosion has taken place. 
In the front yard is a large butternut tree which was planted by 
George and Mable Bacon when they built the house in 1906.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The George H. Bacon residence was designed in 1906 by Henry Bacon, 
architect for the Lincoln Memorial in Washington, D.C. Henry 
Bacon, George's first cousin, gave him the plans as a wedding 
present.

George Bacon came to Whatcom County from Champaign, Illinois, in 
1889, at the age of 23. He settled in Whatcom, now part of Bellingham, 
and became a pioneer realtor and financer of home owners' loans, 
particularly for farms in Whatcom and Skagit Counties. He also 
invested in property, logging, and shingle mills. He was a com­ 
munity leader, a city councilman during 1890's and he became the 
last mayor of New Whatcom. The consolidation of Whatcom, Sehome 
and Fairhaven districts made up the present city of Bellingham. In 
later years he was the manager of Bellingham Bay Improvement Company, 
an early development concern. His wife, Mabel Donovan Bacon, 
was born locally in Sehome the oldest child of Charles and Sarah 
Crockett Donovan, pioneers. Charles Donovan was the first American 
telegrapher on Bellingham Bay. Mrs. Bacon was one of the early 
teachers in Whatcom County and a cultural leader all her life. 
She served on the Bellingham library board for 20 years and under 
four different mayors. The library honored her by having her lay 
the corner stone of the present Bellingham library. The Bacons 
had three children.

The house was foreclosed by the Home Owner's Loan Corporation in 
1938. Since then it has had a succession of owners, the last the 
Catholic Archdiocese of Seattle, under whose auspices the Catholic 
Children's Services is operating a group home for boys.

As determined by available information there are no other buildings 
in the Northwest designed by Henry Bacon. His Lincoln Memorial 
has been mentioned by Whiffen and other historians as being a note­ 
worthy and conspicuous representative of the Neo-Classical Revival 
period in American architecture. The use of classical detailing 
can be costly when applied to residential scale frame buildings; 
however, in this house Bacon has achieved quite a grand effect with 
surprising economy through no specifications requiring expensive 
materials or difficult techniques,
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